7 DECEMBER 2015

NEW FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the New Forest District Council held in the Council Chamber, Appletree Court, Lyndhurst on Monday, 7 December 2015

- * Cllr Mrs A J Hoare (Chairman)
- * Cllr G C Beck (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors:

- * A R Alvey
- * Mrs D E Andrews
- * W G Andrews
- * P J Armstrong Mrs S V Beeton
- * Ms R Bellows
- * Mrs S M Bennison
- * J E Binns
- * G R Blunden
- * D A Britton
- * Mrs D M Brooks
- * Mrs F Carpenter
- * Mrs L D Cerasoli
- * S J Clarke
- * Mrs J L Cleary
- * I C Coombes
- * Ms K V Crisell
- * S P Davies
- * A H G Davis
- * W H Dow
- * Ms L C Ford
- * R L Frampton * A T Glass
- * L E Harris
- * M R Harris
- * D Harrison
- * J D Heron
- * E J Heron
- * Mrs M D Holding

Councillors:

- * Mrs P Jackman
 - M J Kendal
 - Mrs E L Lane
- * Mrs P J Lovelace
- * B D Lucas
- * Mrs A E McEvoy
- * A D O'Sullivan
- * J M Olliff-Cooper
- * N S Penman
- * A K Penson
- * DMSPoole
- * L R Puttock
- * B Rickman
- * W S Rippon-Swaine
- * Mrs A M Rostand
- * D J Russell
- * Miss A Sevier
- * M A Steele
- * M H Thierry
- * Mrs B J Thorne
- * DBTipp
- * D N Tungate
- * A S Wade
- * R A Wappet
- * J G Ward
- * Mrs C V Ward
- * M L White
- * C A Wise
- * Mrs P A Wyeth

Officers Attending:

R Jackson, J Mascall, Miss G O'Rourke and Ms M Stephens

Apologies

Cllrs Mrs Beeton, Kendal and Mrs Lane.

^{*}Present

42 MINUTES

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 19 October 2015 be signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

43 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Cllrs Armstrong, Binns, Poole, Mrs Thorne and Wade in Minute No. 46, item 2 of the Report of General Purposes & Licensing Committee dated 13 November 2015 and Minute No. 47, item 1 of the Report of the Cabinet dated 4 November 2015.

44 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairman had attended a variety of events and these were listed in the latest Information Bulletin. She wished to highlight the following:

Remembrance Day - Sunday 8 November

The Chairman, with the Deputy Lord Lieutenant of Hampshire, Hallum Mills, had attended remembrance services at Marchwood, Keyhaven and Milford on Sea. The Chairman also attended a Remembrance Day concert, performed by the New Forest Chamber Choir.

Brilliance in Business Awards

On Thursday, 27 November, the Chairman, along with the Leader of the Council and the Chief Executive, had attended this year's Brilliance in Business Awards at Carey's Manor Hotel where awards were presented on behalf of the Council. The event highlighted the wide variety of excellent businesses in the New Forest.

The New Forest Veterans' Christmas Party

The Chairman had the pleasure of welcoming 54 New Forest veterans to a special Christmas Party at Dibden Golf Centre on Friday 4 December. Combined, they had served a total of 454 years. They all thoroughly enjoyed the event.

Lantern Parade

On Sunday, 6 December the Chairman had the pleasure of attending the Totton Lantern Parade.

Forthcoming events

On Thursday, 10 December, the Chairman would host the annual volunteers' reception for dedicated volunteer groups in the New Forest. The event would provide the Chairman with the opportunity to thank the volunteers for their good work.

Fundraising Events

The Chairman was holding a raffle, in aid of her charities, the prize was a John Lewis Christmas Hamper. Tickets could be bought, at £1 a strip, from the Chairman or reception at Appletree Court.

The Chairman announced that on Saturday 26 March she would be abseiling down the Spinnaker Tower in Portsmouth in aid of her charities, Oakhaven Hospice and The Firefly Children's Home in Kathmandu. Donations could be given to Donna Langfield.

45 LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

There were none.

46 REPORTS OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES & LICENSING COMMITTEE

Cllrs Armstrong, Binns, Poole and Wade disclosed non-pecuniary interests in item 2 of the Report of the Committee dated 13 November as members of Hythe and Dibden Parish Council. They concluded that there were no issues under common law that prevented them from remaining in the meeting to speak and to vote. There was no discussion on this item.

Cllr Mrs Thorne disclosed a non-pecuniary interest in item 2 of the Report of the Committee dated 13 November as the local ward member for Hythe West & Langdown. She concluded that there were no issues under common law that prevented her from remaining in the meeting to speak and to vote. There was no discussion on this item.

Cllr Clarke, Chairman of the General Purposes and Licensing Committee, presented the reports of the meetings held on 13 November and 3 December 2015.

On the motion that the reports be received and the recommendations adopted, it was

RESOLVED:

That the reports be received and the recommendations be adopted.

47 REPORTS OF THE CABINET

Cllrs Armstrong, Binns, Poole and Wade disclosed non-pecuniary interests in item 1 of the Report of the Cabinet dated 4 November as members of Hythe and Dibden Parish Council. They concluded that there were no issues under common law that prevented them from remaining in the meeting to vote. They remained in the meeting to speak and to vote.

Mrs Thorne disclosed a non-pecuniary interest in item 1 of the Report of the Cabinet dated 4 November as the local ward member for Hythe West & Langdown. She concluded that there were no issues under common law that prevented her from remaining in the meeting to speak and to vote. She remained in the meeting to vote.

7 DECEMBER 2015

The Leader of the Council, as Chairman of the Cabinet, presented the reports of the meetings held on 4 November 2015 and 2 December 2015.

On the motion that the reports be received and the recommendations adopted: -

Item 1 – Report of the Cabinet dated 4 November 2015 – St John's Street Car Park, Hythe: Redevelopment Opportunity and Disposal

In response to a question regarding the capital sum the Council would receive following the sale of the car park, the Environment Portfolio Holder explained that the use of the money received by the Council would, like any other asset, be determined through the normal democratic process.

RESOLVED:

That the reports be received and the recommendations be adopted.

48 QUESTIONS UNDER STANDING ORDER 22

There were none.

49 QUESTIONS TO PORTFOLIO HOLDERS UNDER STANDING ORDER 22A

Question 1:

From: Cllr Harrison

To: Cllr Mrs Cleary, Housing & Communities Portfolio Holder

"Will the Portfolio Holder make a statement with regard to the situation at Savoy House in Totton?"

Answer:

The Portfolio Holder replied that following detailed intrusive inspections of the fabric of the building, where a number of serious structural and health and safety concerns were revealed, officers had had to find alternative accommodation for tenants. Council officers had managed this difficult process well, with the support of the tenants involved. There were now only three households in B&B waiting for an offer of accommodation. The owner of the property had agreed the surrender of the lease, at no cost to the Council. In response to a supplementary question regarding lessons that could have been learnt in the inspection regime, the Portfolio Holder replied that the defects were only revealed when parts of the internal fabric of the building were dismantled when looking for the causes of damp issues, and it would not be reasonable for inspections of this nature to be routinely carried out.

Question 2:

From: Cllr Harrison

To: Cllr Binns, Health & Leisure Portfolio Holder

"Do you expect the Task and Finish group, formed recently to look at the health problems associated with sedentary lifestyles, to consider the likely impact of your decision to increase the cost of membership of our Health & Leisure Centres for those aged 60 - 65 or over by £130 a year, or would that be too embarrassing?"

Answer:

The Portfolio Holder replied that this matter has been given full consideration by the Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel. The Panel agreed that as people were living healthier lives for longer and the state pension for 'seniors' was 65, the policy should reflect that.

In implementing the decision, the Council had taken a fair approach by allowing all existing fitness direct members who are 60 - 65 years of age to have their current (lower) price honoured for as long as they remained members.

The change in policy would provide the Council with income of £52,000 which would be reinvested back into the Health and Leisure Centres. The Council, whilst achieving a 97% customer satisfaction rate, compared more favourably with other centre membership fees. The Portfolio Holder therefore did not believe that the decision would have a significant impact on customers, particularly as the Council's Health and Leisure Service offered extensive programmes to encourage residents to participate in active, healthy lifestyles. As such, the Portfolio Holder would not be asking the Task & Finish Group to review the matter again.

Question 3:

From: Cllr Harrison

To: Cllr E Heron, Planning & Transportation Portfolio Holder

"Are the decisions you make on car parking charges an expression of divine wisdom, or would they possibly be better decisions if you took the trouble to carry out an annual review, so that they were based on traffic management considerations, as well as setting charges at levels that meant our car parks were fully utilised?"

Answer:

The Portfolio Holder replied that as the matter had been the subject of robust discussion at the recent Environment Overview & Scrutiny Panel, he had nothing more to add.

50 REVIEW OF HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL ELECTORAL DIVISIONS RESOLVED:

That authority be delegated to the General Purposes and Licensing Committee to agree the Council's response on the LGBCE's draft recommendations for the electoral review of Hampshire County Council.

51 MEMBERSHIP OF COMMITTEES AND PANELS

RESOLVED:

That Cllr Thierry be appointed to serve on the Planning Development Control Committee, filling the vacancy on the Committee.

CHAIRMAN

